
 

 

 
 

 

 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA PACKAGE 

 

Tuesday, May 17, 2016 



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – MAY 17, 2016 - 1:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

Trustees: Ernest Carrera - Chairman; Alan Weiner - Vice Chairman; Derwin Bright - Trustee; 
Karl Craig - Trustee; Steve Kenny - Trustee;  Julio Muniz - Trustee; Sonya Little - 
Chief Financial Officer 

 

Supporting Staff: Natasha Neagu, Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  Justin Vaske - 
Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney;  Terrie Williams - Accounting 
Operations Manager;  Deborah Hodo - Pension Reporting Accountant;  Rosie Santos 
- Pension Relationship Accountant;  Tammy Shaw - Accounting Technician I 

 

Consultants:  Jason Pulos and Nathan Burk- Asset Consulting Group;  Stephen Lambert Oswald 
and Bruce Crosswhite - AON/Hewitt 

 
Location and Time: City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, Florida 33602,  
 May 17, 2016, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Board of Trustees with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will 
need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  In accordance with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special 
accommodations to participate in this meeting should contact the General Employees Retirement Fund at least 48 hours prior to 
the date of the meeting. 

 

Page Numbers 
I. Roll Call 

 
II. Public Comments -  Ten (10) Minutes Total – Three (3) Minutes per Speaker 

 
III. Approval of Minutes 

1) Minutes for Regular Board Meeting on April 19, 2016 (Motion) ...................................... 4 - 12 
 

IV. Staff Report 
1) Real Estate Manager Presentations (Motion) ............................................................. Handouts 

 
a) JP Morgan 

Mike Kelly – Managing Director and Head of Debt Capital Markets 
Alexia Gottschalch – Managing Director and Head of Business Development 
 

b) Blackstone 
     AJ Agarwal - Senior Managing Director, Head of BPP US 

  Andrew Fenet - Principal 
 

2) Portfolio Performance Review – Q1 2016 and April 2016 – ACG ................................... 13 – 17 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 1 of 56



BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY – May 17, 2016  
 

 
 

Page Numbers 
 

3) Q3 FY16 Cash Flow Projection – May Liquidity Needs (Motion) ..................................... 18 - 19 
4) Resolution 2016-03 for AON Hewitt Contract Amendment (Motion) ........................... 20 - 24 
5) Division A Survivor Remarriage Audit Procedures 2nd Reading (Motion) ...................... 25 - 26 
6) Overpayment Procedures 2nd Reading (Motion) ............................................................ 27 - 31 
7) Member Handbook for General Employees Proposal (Motion) ................................... Handout 

 
V. Old Business 

1) Retirement Education Plan 
2) Forfeiture Procedures, Hearing Officer and Education Plan 
3) Outstanding Disability Applications:  Job Yulee, Edwin Cirino 
4) Disability Re-Examination Audit 
5) LMCG Investment Management Contract 

 
VI. Consent Agenda (Motion) 

 
Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  
Longevity Retirements, DROP Entrant, DROP to Longevity, Deferred Retirements,  Disability 
Retirement, Survivor Benefits, Estate Payments, Lump Sum Death Benefit……….. ...................... 32 

 
Quarterly Invoices: 

 
1) Aberdeen - #76677 - $56,513.78............................................................................................. 33 
2) CBRE Clarion – $53,133.00 ...................................................................................................... 34 
3) Clarivest Asset Management - #120853 - $29,084.05 ............................................................ 35 
4) Dodge & Cox - #34680 - $75,179.40 ....................................................................................... 36 
5) Fisher Investments - #IG5218-0001 - $102,253.79 ................................................................. 37 
6) JP Morgan - #820346 - $49,400.77 ......................................................................................... 38 
7) State Street Global Advisors - #SSGABA2272241 - $8,585.54 ................................................ 39 
8) Taplin, Canida & Habacht - $34,520.06 ................................................................................... 40 
9) Waddell & Reed - #304470 - $108,968.47 .............................................................................. 41 
10) Wellington - #20160331-96246-A - $39,157.41 ...................................................................... 42 

 
Deducted from Account 
1) Brandywine Global - #20160331-482-4233-A - $67,114.45 .................................................... 43 
2) Marathon-London – Jan. 2016 - $16,627.00 ........................................................................... 44 
3) Marathon-London – Feb. 2016 - $16,274.00 .......................................................................... 45 
4) Marathon-London – Mar. 2016 - $17,182.00 ......................................................................... 46 
5) UBS  - $106,299.34 .................................................................................................................. 47 

 
Miscellaneous Invoices: 
 
1) Ford & Harrison - #653704 - $324.00 ...................................................................................... 48 
2) Ford & Harrison - #653705 - $1,985.00 ................................................................................... 49 
3) Ford & Harrison - #653706 - $5,789.00 ................................................................................... 50 
4) Ford & Harrison - #653930 - $9,644.25 ................................................................................... 51 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 2 of 56



BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY – May 17, 2016  
 

 
 

Page Numbers 
 

5) Tampa Occupational Health Services – Ethelda Oliver - $750.00 ........................................... 52 
6) Tampa Occupational Health Services – Shannon Edge - $1,400.00 ........................................ 53 
7) Tampa Occupational Health Services – Job Yulee - $300.00................................................... 54 
8) Victor Valentin, M.D., P.A. – Eliab Delgado - $25.00 ............................................................... 55 
9) City of Tampa Reimbursement – April 2016 - $22,739.38 ...................................................... 56 

 
 

VII. Adjournment 
 

Upcoming Meeting Schedule – City Council Chambers: 
Tuesday, June 7, 2016 – 1:00 p.m. – Forfeiture Hearing 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 – 1:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 
 

Scheduled Topics for Regular June Board Meeting: 
Disability Retirement Hearings 

Small Cap Equity Manager Updates:  ClariVest & Wellington 
ACG Monthly Report 

Monthly Liquidity Needs 
DROP Rate of Return for Period 10/01/2015 – 03/31/2016 

AON Hewitt – Actuarial Valuation Report 
Retirement Education Plan 

Annual Report Proposal 
 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 3 of 56



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – APRIL 19, 2016 - 1:00 p.m. 
 

 

The Board of Trustees for the General Employees Retirement Fund convened in a regular session at 1:00 
p.m. on this 19th day of April, 2016 in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy 
Blvd., Tampa, FL 33602.   
 
Support Staff:  Natasha Neagu, Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  Justin Vaske, Assistant 
City Attorney and Board Attorney; Terrie Williams, Accounting Operations Manager;  Deborah Hodo, 
Pension Reporting Accountant;  Rosie Santos, Pension Relationship Accountant; Tammy Shaw, 
Accounting Technician I; and Karencia Ciagala, Office Support Specialist III. 
 
Consultants to Board: Jason Pulos and Nathan Burk, Asset Consulting Group; Stephen Lambert-Oswald 
and Bruce Crosswhite, AON/Hewitt.   

 
I. ROLL CALL  

 
Mr. Carrera, Chairman, presiding, brought the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.   
 
Board Members Present Included:  Ernest Carrera, Chairman; Karl Craig, Trustee; Julio Muniz, Trustee; 
Steve Kenny, Trustee.  Board Members absent include:  Alan Weiner, Vice Chairman; Sonya Little, Chief 
Financial Officer; and Derwin Bright, Trustee. 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS- Ten (10) Minutes Total – Three (3) Minutes per Speaker 

 
None. 

  
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Ms. Neagu requested the Board approve the minutes from the March 10, 2016 Special Call Meeting.  
 
MOTION: (Muniz-Craig) On a motion made by Mr. Muniz, and seconded by Mr. Craig, to approve the 
minutes from the March 10, 2016 Special Call Meeting.  MOTION CARRIED.   
 
Ms. Neagu requested the Board approve the minutes from the March 15, 2016 Regular Board Meeting.  
 
MOTION: (Craig-Muniz) On a motion made by Mr. Craig, and seconded by Mr. Muniz, to approve the 
minutes from the March 15, 2016 Regular Board Meeting. MOTION CARRIED.   
 

Ms. Neagu requested the board approve the minutes from the March 29, 2016 Forfeiture Hearing.  
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 4 of 56



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 

 

 

MOTION: (Muniz-Kenny) On a motion made by Mr. Muniz, and seconded by Mr. Kenny, to approve the 
minutes from the March 29, 2016 Forfeiture Hearing. MOTION CARRIED.   
 

IV. FIDUCIARY LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY RENEWAL 

 

Ms. Neagu then introduced Doug Moore with BB&T Insurance Services.  Mr. Moore explained that he is 
one of the City’s insurance brokers and was present at the meeting to discuss a one year renewal of the 
City’s fiduciary liability insurance policy effective 4/15/16.   He asked the Board to approve the premium 
payment of the policy for the General Employees Retirement Fund in the amount of $39,282.  Mr. Kenny 
inquired about the premium amount from last year.  Mr. Moore informed the Board that the premium 
increase was only about $100 from last year.  
 
MOTION: (Kenny - Craig) On a motion made by Mr. Kenny and seconded by Mr. Craig, to renew the  
fiduciary liability insurance policy effective 04/15/2016 and approve the premium payment.  MOTION 
CARRIED.  
 

V. DISABILITY RETIREMENT HEARINGS 

 
Pension Plan Supervisor, Natasha Neagu brought two disability applications before the board. 
 
1. Ethelda Oliver (Ms. Oliver and her husband were both present) 
 
Ms. Neagu provided a summary of her case and the timelines. 
 
This case is a continuance from the March 15, 2016 Board Meeting, at which Ms. Oliver was granted one 
final opportunity to provide any additional medical records which pre-date her termination date.  Ms. 
Neagu called and set up an appointment with Ms. Oliver on March 17th to review any additional medical 
records.  Shortly before this meeting was to occur, Ms. Oliver called to cancel stating that she did not 
have enough time to collect her records.  The meeting was rescheduled for March 30, 2016. 
 
On March 30, 2016, Natasha Neagu, Terrie Williams and Tammy Shaw met with Ms. Oliver and her 
husband. At that time the additional records that were received were reviewed and most of them post-
dated her termination date with the City of Tampa.  Ms. Oliver made a list of doctors that she would be 
contacting for additional records.  Ms. Oliver was given a deadline of April 8, 2016 for all records to be 
received to give the Board’s independent medical examiner ample time to review the documents. 
 
On April 8, 2016, Ms. Oliver dropped off additional medical records.  The General Employees Retirement 
Fund staff reviewed the documents and separated out those that pre-dated her termination date.  Those 
records along with a Social Security Disability Award letter were provided to Dr. Robin R. Hughes on April 
11, 2016. 
 
Dr. Hughes reviewed the additional records and provided an updated medical opinion letter on April 14, 
2016.  Ms. Neagu read Dr. Hughes’ letter to the Board which stated in relevant part, “Based on these 
additional medical records provided and reviewed, my opinion at that time remains unchanged from the 
April 18, 2013 and May 30, 2013 reports.”  Based on this report, Ms. Neagu updated the Board that the 
staff recommendation is for denial of Ms. Oliver’s disability retirement application.   

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 5 of 56



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 

 

 

 
MOTION: (Muniz - Craig) On a motion made by Mr. Muniz, and seconded by Mr. Craig, to deny the 
disability retirement application for Ms. Ethelda Oliver. MOTION CARRIED.   
 
After the disability retirement hearing for Ms. Oliver, the Board decided to take a short five minute 
recess. 
 
2. Job Yulee (Mr. Yulee was present with legal counsel Tonya Oliver, Esq. and a court reporter) 
 
Ms. Neagu provided a summary of his case and the timelines. 
 
Mr. Yulee initially applied for disability on June 17, 2004.  Mr. Yulee was seen by the Board’s independent 
medical examiners, Dr. Owi on July 17, 2014 and Dr. Hughes on July 23, 2014.  Both doctors provided 
comprehensive evaluation reports on the same dates that Mr. Yulee was evaluated. 
 
Dr. Owi stated in relevant part “After careful review of the medical records and examination of Mr. Yulee, 
it is my opinion that he is partially and permanently disabled but could provide a useful and efficient 
service provided that reasonable accommodations could be made.” 
 
The Board’s independent medical examiner, Dr. Hughes, recommended denial of Mr. Green’s disability 
retirement application and stated in relevant part “Based upon review of Mr. Yulee’s extensive medical 
records, his independent evaluation today, Dr. Owi’s medical report and Occupational Medicine Practice 
Guidelines published by the American College of Occupational Medicine, it is this examiner’s opinion that 
at this time Mr. Yulee is partially and permanently disabled but could provide a useful and efficient 
service provided that reasonable accommodations could be made by the City of Tampa.” 
 
Based on the medical documentation received and a review of Mr. Yulee’s prior education and work 
experience, the HR Department determined that two positions would be within the capability of Mr. 
Yulee.  The positions are Customer Service Clerk I and Brush Site Attendant. 
 
Ms. Oliver, legal counsel for Mr. Yulee, addressed the Board stating three main points that she felt should 
be considered prior to making a determination on Mr. Yulee’s case. First, there were two job related 
inquiries that eventually resulted in Mr. Yulee applying for disability retirement. The initial inquiry 
occurred on March 9, 2010, in which, Mr. Yulee recovered, returned to work and continued to work 
through the pain.  Then there was a second accident on May 7, 2013 which aggravated the initial inquiry.  
Ms. Oliver also mentioned that the earlier reports stated that Mr. Yulee could return if reasonable 
accommodations could be made, however, Mr. Yulee was terminated before any accommodations were 
made, therefore, he could not return to work.  Counsel also noted that there is a huge contrast between 
the Board’s independent medical examiners’ opinions and that of the Workers’ Compensation doctors 
who have continually been treating Mr. Yulee over a period of time.  Ms. Oliver requested a continuance 
to depose the Board’s Independent Medical Examiner for clarification on the vast difference between his 
opinion and those of the Workers’ Compensation doctors. 
 
The Board’s attorney , Justin Vaske, advised that Dr. Hughes could not be deposed.  However, the 
General Employees Retirement Fund staff could provide information to Dr. Hughes.  Natasha Neagu then 
reminded the Board and Ms. Oliver that medical records dated after Mr. Yulee’s termination date of June 
20, 2014 could not be included in determining disability. 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 6 of 56



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 

 

 

Upon questions from the Board, Ms. Oliver stated that she could have a list of questions available for Dr. 
Hughes within 15 days.  Ms. Neagu advised that Dr. Hughes generally needed about a week to review and 
respond.  Chairman Carrera suggested that 60 days would be ample time for counsel to provide 
questions for Dr. Hughes and for them to be addressed. 
 
MOTION: (Kenny - Craig) On a motion made by Mr. Kenny, and seconded by Mr. Craig, to postpone the 
disability retirement hearing for Mr. Job Yulee until the June 21, 2016 meeting. MOTION CARRIED.   
 

 

VI. STAFF REPORT 

 
Ms. Neagu advised the Board that there was a change in the meeting agenda and Jason Pulos and Nathan 
Burk of Asset Consulting Group would be providing the March 2016 performance report before the small 
cap value manager presentations. 
 
1.    March 2016 Performance Report - ACG 
 
ACG reviewed the monthly report for the period ending March 31, 2016. The market value of the Total 
Fund (“Fund”) at the end of March 2016 was approximately $643.7 million which was up from the prior 
month as all asset classes advanced higher. The first three months of the year were volatile with equity 
markets beginning the year sharply down, but mostly recovered in February and March.  

 The Fund’s longer-term performance is tracking about in-line with the policy index.  Over the trailing 
three years ending March 31, 2016, the Fund is up 6.04% annualized compared to the Policy Index which 
is up 5.97% annualized.  Over the five year period ending March 31, 2016 the Fund is up 6.54% 
annualized compared to the Policy Index of 6.58% annualized.  

ACG invited three small cap value managers to present to the Board as finalists for an allocation: 
Integrity, River Road and LMCG.  

2.    Small Cap Value Manager Presentations 
 

a) Integrity Asset Management 
Dan Bandi, CFA – Chief Investment Officer, Lead Portfolio Manager  
Mike Thistleton – Managing Director, Institutional Markets 

 
Messrs. Bandi and Thistleton introduced themselves to the Board and provided an overview of Integrity 
and the firm’s small cap value investment strategy.  Integrity is an institutional investment management 
firm founded in June 2003. Their goal is not to be the best, but to provide consistent returns over time, 
by using a flexible approach and focusing on diversification and risk control. 
 
The objective is to provide capital appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of small cap stocks 
with low price to cash flow, price to book, and price to sales ratios relative to those of the Russell 2000 
Value Index. 
 
Annual Fee Schedule – 1% of first $15M (minimum annual fee $100K); 0.90% of next $35M; 0.80% of next 
$50M; and 0.75% thereafter). 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 7 of 56



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 

 

 

 
b)   River Road Asset Management  

R. Andrew Beck – President & CEO, Senior Portfolio Manager 
L. Michele Robbins – Vice President, Client Consultant Relations 

 
Mr. Beck and Ms. Robbins introduced themselves to the Board and provided an overview of River Road 
and the firm’s small cap value investment strategy.  River Road is a value-oriented, institutional equity 
management firm that was founded in April 2005. They employ a balanced approach to diversification 
and a structured sell discipline to help reduce portfolio volatility and the risk of permanent loss of capital. 
 
The objective of River Road’s absolute value approach is to generate attractive, sustainable, low volatility 
returns over the long term, with an emphasis on minimizing downside portfolio risk.  They focus on 
excellent companies trading at compelling prices; emphasize bottom-up portfolio construction; and focus 
on less efficient areas of the equity market. 
 
Annual Fee Schedule – 1% of First $10M (Minimum $5M); 0.95% of next $15M; 0.90% of next $25M; and 
0.80% thereafter). 
 
 
c)   LMCG  

 R. Todd Vingers, CFA – Managing Director, Lead Portfolio Manager  
Tom Capobianco – Director, Public Fund Marketing 

 
Messrs. Vingers and Capobianco introduced themselves to the Board and provided an overview of LMCG 
and the firm’s small cap value investment strategy.  LMCG Investments is a classic value driven 
investment management firm founded in 2000. They employ a disciplined investment processes with a 
focus on risk management. They specialize in inefficient markets. 
 
The objective of LMCG is to emphasize a return on capital and a strong balance sheet bias; focus on cash 
flow, not growth. They don’t want to take big risk.  They focus on stocks offering a high probability of 
modest outperformance rather than a low probability of high outperformance. 
 
Standard Annual Fee Schedule – 1% on First $25M (Minimum $5M); 0.90% on next $25M; and 0.80%  
thereafter; however, the Proposed Annual Fee Schedule is 0.75% on all assets to align with the fees of 
other clients similar to the City of Tampa’s General Employees Retirement Fund. 
 
 
Jason Pulos and Nathan Burk of ACG then did a side by side comparison narrative of the three small cap 
value managers.  The Board engaged in a discussion about the three investment manager proposals. 
 
MOTION: (Kenny - Craig) On a motion made by Mr. Kenny, seconded by Mr. Craig, and opposed by Mr. 
Muniz, to select LMCG the new small cap value manager. MOTION CARRIED.   
 
 
 
3. Q3 FY2016 Cash Flow Projection 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 8 of 56



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 

 

 

Ms. Neagu reviewed the Q3 FY16 Cash Flow Projection with the Board and recommended to liquidate 
investments on a monthly versus quarterly basis to allow funds to remain invested until needed.  Ms. 
Neagu advised the Board that $3.5M was needed to fund April 2016 benefit payments.  ACG 
recommended the liquidation of $3.5 million from the CBRE Clarion Global REITS portfolio.  The Board 
approved the recommendation.  
 
MOTION: (Muniz - Kenny) On a motion made by Mr. Muniz, seconded by Mr. Kenny, to approve the 
rebalancing analysis and liquidation of $3.5M from CBRE Clarion to cash to address April’s funding 
requirements. MOTION CARRIED.   
 
 
4. Fisher Investments Update 
 
Ms. Neagu informed the Board of the succession planning announcement from Fisher Investments.  Ken 
Fisher, CEO, has named Damian Ornani as the new Chief Executive Officer effective July 1, 2016.  While 
Mr. Fisher has no plans to retire, he felt it was simply prudent planning for them to take an early and 
gradual approach to management succession. 
 
5. Long Wharf FREG III Distribution - $57,097.90 
 
Ms. Neagu informed the Board that Long Wharf Fidelity Real Estate Growth Fund III wired a distribution 
of $57,097.90 on March 31,2016 and funds were moved to the cash account. 
 
6. Hearing Officer for Forfeitures 
 
Board Attorney, Justin Vaske, began the discussion of hiring a hearing officer from the Department of 
Administrative Hearings for forfeiture cases.  The hearing officer would hear the case and make a ruling.  
Then the final order would come from the Board. This would eliminate the Board’s need to hear the 
backlog of forfeiture cases. The typical fee is $150 per hour.  Mr. Vaske spoke with the City of 
Jacksonville’s pension coordinator and their last hearing cost about $2,500. 

Mr. Vaske also informed the Board that if they decided to pursue this course of action, the Board would 
have to change the General Employees Retirement Fund’s policies and procedures to permit the hearing 
officer, then enter into a contract with the Department of Administrative Hearings to hire the 
Administrative Law Judge. 

After some discussion regarding some of the recent forfeiture cases, especially those involving minor 
thefts, Mr. Vaske reminded the Board that the City of Tampa has no flexibility regarding theft cases.  They 
are mandated by State Statute for proceeding with forfeiture if there is an admission of guilt or are 
convicted.  Ms. Neagu then informed the Board that the week prior she, Justin Vaske, Ernest Mueller and 
Terrie Williams met with the HR Director to discuss forfeiture education initiatives.  They left the meeting 
with a list of action items and hope to come back to the Board to present a forfeiture education plan for 
City of Tampa employees. 

Mr. Vaske also stated that in theft cases the employee had to be terminated for the offense before the 
forfeiture process could begin.  If employees go to the Civil Service Board and have the termination 
overturned and are reinstated, forfeiture proceedings would not occur. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 9 of 56



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 

 

 

MOTION: (Muniz - Craig) On a motion made by Mr. Muniz, and seconded by Mr. Craig, to allow Board 
Attorney, Justin Vaske to draft rules and procedures and a contract with the Department of 
Administrative Hearings. MOTION CARRIED.   
 
7. Division A Survivor Remarriage Audit 
 
a.  Audit Summary 
 
Ms. Neagu gave the Board an update of the Division A Survivor Remarriage Audit by first providing the 
scope, procedures and results. Of the 368 survivors, 306 complied and stated that they had not 
remarried, 5 were deceased, 10 had remarried and all had a reduction in benefits.  Of those 10, it was 
found that in 3 cases the benefits were incorrectly reduced resulting in overpayments.  In all 3 cases the 
benefits were adjusted to the correct amounts effective with the March 31, 2016 pay date.   Forty-six 
survivors had not complied with the audit. An attempt was made to call all of them and a second letter 
and affidavit were mailed.  One survivor was found to be negligent.  He indicated that he had not 
remarried, however his marriage certificate was found on the Hillsborough County Clerk’s website.  Ms. 
Neagu advised the Board that his benefits were reduced effective with the March 31, 2016 pay date.  
 
b.  Audit Policies & Procedures 1st Reading 
 
Ms. Neagu summarized the proposed policies and procedures for Division A Survivor Remarriage Audits.  
Ms. Neagu proposed that an annual audit of all Division A Survivors be performed to ensure benefits are 
being paid in compliance with Section 12(A)(1)(a) of Chapter 23559 of the Special Act of 1945.  Those 
survivors who had previously notified the General Employees Retirement Fund of a remarriage and 
subsequently had a reduction in benefits would be exempt from the annual audit.  Staff will review any 
available County Clerk websites to determine if there are any marriage records.  A follow up letter will be 
sent to all survivors who fail to reply within 30 days, indicating that the audit is mandatory and failure to 
comply will result in the suspension of pension benefits.   Any reported or discovered remarriages will 
result in a reduction in benefits to 50% of the employee’s accrued pension in accordance with Section 
12(A)(1)(a) of Chapter 23559 of the Special Act of 1945.  Any discovery of overpayments as a result of this 
audit will be collected in accordance with the Board’s overpayment policies and procedures. 
 
8. Overpayment Polices & Procedures 
 
Per the Board’s request at the March 15, 2016 meeting, Ms. Neagu drafted overpayment policies and 
procedures.  The overpayments would be classified into one of two categories: overpayments as a result 
of administrative errors and overpayments due to retiree negligence. 
 
Ms. Neagu proposed that in both cases every attempt will be made to collect the overpayment.  In the 
event of an administrative error, the overpayment will be collected over the same period of time that the 
overpayment occurred by reducing the retiree’s pension benefit, with no interest charged.  However, in 
cases of retiree or survivor negligence, the overpayment will be collected over the same period of time 
that the overpayment occurred by reducing the monthly pension benefit, and the member will be 
charged interest equal to the rate of return assumption of the fund.  
 
The proposed policies and procedures would also address an appeal process in which the member may 
request a review by the Board of Trustees.  As a result, the Board could rescind the action of the Plan 
Administrator and institute another recovery method recommended by the Fund’s Actuary, waive any 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 10 of 56



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 

 

 

repayment which it believes would cause hardship (following the IRS hardship guidelines) or uphold the 
decision/action of the Plan Administrator. 
 
Ms. Neagu also mentioned that in the future more audits will occur and become a regular part of the day 
to day operations and that more overpayment findings were likely to occur.  She advised the Board to 
provide any feedback on the proposed policies and procedures and that the final reading/adoption of 
procedures would be placed on the agenda for the May 17, 2016 meeting. 
 
9.  Disability Re-Examination Audit 
 
Ms. Neagu stated that the annual Disability Re-Examination Audit was conducted.  Forms were mailed to 
the five members selected in compliance with the Board’s policies and procedures.  Ms. Neagu asked the 
board for a motion to continue to the next step of requesting the members’ medical records to be sent to 
the Board’s Independent Medical Examiner for review. 
 
MOTION: (Kenny - Craig) On a motion made by Mr. Kenny, and seconded by Mr. Craig, proceed with 
the Disability Re-Examination Audit. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Ms. Neagu advised the Consent Agenda has been reviewed and the items listed are true, correct, have 
been evaluated and audited to ensure contract compliance and correctness.  
 
Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments: 
Longevity Retirements, DROP Entrants, DROP to Longevity, Deferred Retirements, Disability Retirement, 
Survivor Benefits, Estate Payments, Lump-Sum Death Benefit.  
 
Quarterly Invoices: 

1. Asset Consulting Group - #7331 - $31,250.00 

Miscellaneous Invoices: 

1. Ford & Harrison - #652037 - $ 650.00 
2. Ford & Harrison - #652039 - $ 5,428.85 
3. Ford & Harrison - #652041 - $ 21.42 
4. Ford & Harrison - #652043 - $ 1,406.50 
5. Ford & Harrison - #652044 - $ 810.00 
6. Ford & Harrison - #652045 - $ 1,402.28 
7. Ford & Harrison - #652046 - $ 300.00 
8. Ford & Harrison - #652047 - $ 610.00 
9. Ford & Harrison - #652048 - $ 642.50 
10. Ford & Harrison - #652049 - $ 395.00 
11. Ford & Harrison - #652050 - $ 939.53 
12. Ford & Harrison - #652051 - $ 275.00 
13. HB Workman Design - #14-231 - $600.00 
14. Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP - #509701 - $822.50 
15. Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP - #513858 - $315.00 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 11 of 56



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 

 

 

16. Tampa Occupational Health Services – Job Yulee - $300.00 
17. City of Tampa Reimbursement – (Mar. 12, 2016 – Apr. 14, 2016) - $21,303.64 

 

 
MOTION: (Kenny-Craig/Muniz) On a motion made by Mr. Kenny and seconded by Mr. Craig and Mr. 
Muniz for the approval of the Consent Agenda as presented.  MOTION CARRIED.   
 

VIII. MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
The next Forfeiture Hearing will be held at 1:00 p.m., Monday, May 16, 2016, in City Council 
Chambers. 
 
The next Regular Board meeting will be held at 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, May 17, 2016, in City Council 
Chambers.   

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business, Chair Carrera adjourned the meeting at 3:39 p.m.  
 
 
 
                  __________________________________________ 
       CHAIRMAN – Ernest P. Carrera 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      PENSION PLAN SUPERVISOR – Natasha Neagu 

& RECORDING SECRETARY 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 12 of 56



 P
re

lim
in

ar
y

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

M
ar

ke
t

Va
lu

e
($

00
0s

)

A
ct

ua
l

A
llo

ca
tio

n
(%

)

Ta
rg

et
A

llo
ca

tio
n

(%
)

O
ve

r/
Un

de
r

(%
)

To
ta

l P
or

tfo
lio

64
6,

71
5

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

Eq
ui

ty
38

5,
89

4
59

.6
7

60
.0

0
-0

.3
3

55
.0

0
65

.0
0

  
  
 U

S 
La

rg
e

 C
a

p
 E

q
u

it
y

1
9
0
,8

6
7

2
9
.5

1
2
5
.0

0
4
.5

1
2
0
.0

0
3
0
.0

0

  
  
 U

S 
Sm

a
ll 

C
a

p
 E

q
u

it
y

4
8
,1

8
7

7
.4

5
1
0
.0

0
-2

.5
5

7
.0

0
1
3
.0

0

  
  
 I
n

t'
l D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 E

q
u

it
y

1
2
0
,5

3
0

1
8
.6

4
2
0
.0

0
-1

.3
6

1
7
.0

0
2
3
.0

0

  
  
 E

m
e

rg
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 E
q

u
it
y

2
6
,3

1
0

4
.0

7
5
.0

0
-0

.9
3

3
.0

0
7
.0

0

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
18

8,
98

4
29

.2
2

30
.0

0
-0

.7
8

23
.0

0
37

.0
0

Re
al

 A
ss

et
s

71
,1

22
11

.0
0

10
.0

0
1.

00
7.

00
13

.0
0

  
  
 C

o
re

 R
e

a
l E

st
a

te
3
9
,1

9
9

6
.0

6
7
.0

0
-0

.9
4

5
.0

0
1
2
.0

0

  
  
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

is
ti
c

 R
e

a
l E

st
a

te
8
3
7

0
.1

3
3
.0

0
-2

.8
7

1
.0

0
5
.0

0

  
  
 G

lo
b

a
l R

E
IT

s
3
1
,0

8
6

4
.8

1
0
.0

0
4
.8

1
0
.0

0
5
.0

0

C
as

h 
an

d 
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

s
71

5
0.

11
0.

00
0.

11

M
ar

ke
t

Va
lu

e
($

00
0s

)

A
ct

ua
l

A
llo

ca
tio

n
(%

)

1
M

on
th

(%
)

YT
D

(%
)

FY
TD

(%
)

1
Ye

ar
(%

)

3
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

5
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

10
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

Si
nc

e
In

ce
pt

io
n

(%
)

To
ta

l P
or

tfo
lio

 (0
7/

85
)

64
6,

71
5

10
0.

00
1.

02
1.

32
4.

69
-2

.3
8

5.
59

6.
10

5.
45

8.
53

Po
lic

y 
In

d
ex

 1
1.

04
2.

28
5.

58
-1

.4
4

5.
54

6.
17

5.
39

--
1

C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s' 

Re
tir

em
en

t F
un

d
Fo

r t
he

 P
er

io
d

s E
nd

in
g 

A
pr

il 3
0,

 2
01

6

Ra
ng

e
M

in
 - 

M
ax

(%
)

Th
e

 P
o

lic
y
 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

s 
o

f 
3

0
%

 B
a

rc
la

y
s 

U
S 

A
g

g
re

g
a

te
, 

2
0

%
 M

SC
I 
E
A

FE
, 

2
5

%
 R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

, 
1

0
%

 R
u

ss
e

ll 
2

0
0

0
, 

5
%

 M
SC

I 
E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
, 

5
%

 N
FI

 O
D

C
E
 n

e
t 

a
n

d
 5

%
 F

TS
E
 E

P
R

A
/N

A
R

E
IT

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 R
E
. 

P
ri
o

r 
to

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

, 
th

e
 P

o
lic

y
 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

e
d

 o
f 

3
0

%
 

B
a

rc
la

y
s 

U
S 

A
g

g
re

g
a

te
, 

1
8

%
 M

SC
I 
E
A

FE
, 

2
9

%
 R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

, 
7

%
 R

u
ss

e
ll 

2
0

0
0

, 
3

%
 M

SC
I 
E
A

FE
 S

M
ID

 N
e

tD
iv

, 
3

%
 M

SC
I 
E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
, 

5
%

 N
FI

 O
D

C
E
 n

e
t 

a
n

d
 5

%
 F

TS
E
 E

P
R

A
/N

A
R

E
IT

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 R
E
. 

 P
ri
o

r 
to

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
0

9
, 

th
e

 P
o

lic
y
 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

e
d

 o
f 

3
0

%
 

B
a

rc
la

y
s 

U
S 

A
g

g
re

g
a

te
, 

1
8

%
 M

SC
I 
E
A

FE
, 

3
2

%
 R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

, 
8

%
 R

u
ss

e
ll 

2
0

0
0

, 
3

.5
%

 M
SC

I 
E
A

FE
 S

m
a

ll 
C

a
p

, 
3

.5
%

 M
SC

I 
E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
, 
a

n
d

 5
%

 N
FI

 O
D

C
E
 n

e
t.

 

A
ct

ua
l v

s.
 Ta

rg
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n

29.51%

7.45%

18.64%

4.07%

29.22%

6.06%

0.13%

4.81%

0.11%

25.00%

10.00%

20.00%

5.00%

30.00%

7.00%

3.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0
.0

0
%

1
0

.0
0

%

2
0

.0
0

%

3
0

.0
0

%

4
0

.0
0

%

U
S 

La
rg

e
 C

a
p

 E
q

u
it
y

U
S 

Sm
a

ll 
C

a
p

 E
q

u
it
y

In
t'
l D

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

E
q

u
it
y

E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 E

q
u

it
y

Fi
xe

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

C
o

re
 R

e
a

l E
st

a
te

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
is

ti
c

 R
e

a
l E

st
a

te
G

lo
b

a
l R

E
IT

s
C

a
sh

 a
n

d
 E

q
u

iv
a

le
n

ts

A
c

tu
a

l A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
Ta

rg
e

t 
A

llo
c

a
ti
o

n

 ©
 2

01
6 

A
ss

et
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
 A

ll R
ig

ht
s R

es
er

ve
d

 1

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 13 of 56



 P
re

lim
in

ar
y

M
ar

ke
t

Va
lu

e
($

00
0s

)

A
ct

ua
l

A
llo

ca
tio

n
(%

)

1
M

on
th

(%
)

YT
D

(%
)

FY
TD

(%
)

1
Ye

ar
(%

)

3
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

5
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

10
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

Si
nc

e
In

ce
pt

io
n

(%
)

To
ta

l P
or

tfo
lio

 (0
7/

85
)

64
6,

71
5

10
0.

00
1.

02
1.

32
4.

69
-2

.3
8

5.
59

6.
10

5.
45

8.
53

Po
lic

y 
In

d
ex

 1
1.

04
2.

28
5.

58
-1

.4
4

5.
54

6.
17

5.
39

--
US

 L
ar

ge
 C

ap
 E

qu
ity

 (0
4/

02
)

19
0,

86
7

29
.5

1
0.

92
-1

.1
6

5.
11

-1
.8

8
11

.8
3

11
.0

4
7.

11
7.

38
S&

P 
50

0
0.

39
1.

74
8.

91
1.

21
11

.2
6

11
.0

2
6.

91
6.

40

US
 S

m
al

l C
ap

 E
qu

ity
 (0

1/
99

)
48

,1
87

7.
45

1.
93

-1
.2

4
2.

70
-6

.2
1

7.
05

7.
83

6.
05

10
.4

9
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0
1.

57
0.

03
3.

62
-5

.9
4

7.
53

6.
98

5.
42

7.
27

N
on

 U
S 

Eq
ui

ty
  (

03
/0

3)
14

6,
84

0
22

.7
1

1.
60

0.
17

4.
83

-1
0.

19
0.

45
0.

71
2.

32
8.

44
N

on
 U

S 
Eq

ui
ty

 In
d

ex
 2

2.
52

1.
31

5.
29

-1
0.

58
1.

14
1.

33
2.

21
9.

04

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
(1

0/
84

)
18

8,
98

4
29

.2
2

0.
95

5.
43

4.
67

1.
88

1.
50

3.
83

5.
21

6.
90

Ba
rc

la
ys

 U
S 

A
gg

re
ga

te
0.

38
3.

43
2.

84
2.

72
2.

29
3.

60
4.

95
7.

44

Re
al

 A
ss

et
s 

(0
7/

02
)

71
,1

22
11

.0
0

-0
.2

5
2.

92
6.

55
6.

97
8.

20
9.

47
6.

46
8.

40
Re

al
 A

ss
et

s C
om

po
sit

e 
In

d
ex

 3
-0

.0
2

3.
76

7.
71

7.
90

8.
38

10
.1

4
5.

81
--

C
as

h 
an

d 
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

s 
(0

6/
93

)
71

5
0.

11
0.

00
0.

11
0.

16
0.

40
0.

25
0.

26
1.

32
3.

03
US

 T
-B

ills
 9

0 
D

ay
0.

03
0.

10
0.

13
0.

15
0.

08
0.

08
1.

13
2.

77
2 3

C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s' 

Re
tir

em
en

t F
un

d
Fo

r t
he

 P
er

io
d

s E
nd

in
g 

A
pr

il 3
0,

 2
01

6

Th
e

 N
o

n
 U

S 
E
q

u
it
y
 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

s 
o

f 
8

0
%

 M
SC

I 
E
A

FE
 a

n
d

 2
0

%
 M

SC
I 
E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 I
n

d
e

x.
 P

ri
o

r 
to

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

, 
th

e
 N

o
n

 U
.S

. 
E
q

u
it
y
 P

o
lic

y
 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

e
d

 o
f 

7
5

%
 M

SC
I 
E
A

FE
, 

1
2

.5
%

 M
SC

I 
E
A

FE
 S

M
ID

 N
e

tD
iv

, 
a

n
d

 1
2

.5
%

 M
SC

I 
E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 I
n

d
e

x.

Th
e

 R
e

a
l A

ss
e

ts
 C

o
m

p
o

si
te

 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

s 
o

f 
5

0
%

 N
FI

 O
D

C
E
 n

e
t 

a
n

d
 5

0
%

 F
TS

E
 E

P
R

A
/N

A
R

E
IT

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 R
E
 I
n

d
e

x.

 ©
 2

01
6 

A
ss

et
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
 A

ll R
ig

ht
s R

es
er

ve
d

 2

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 14 of 56



 P
re

lim
in

ar
y

M
ar

ke
t

Va
lu

e
($

00
0s

)

A
ct

ua
l

A
llo

ca
tio

n
(%

)

1
M

on
th

(%
)

YT
D

(%
)

FY
TD

(%
)

1
Ye

ar
(%

)

3
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

5
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

10
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

Si
nc

e
In

ce
pt

io
n

(%
)

US
 L

ar
ge

 C
ap

 E
qu

ity
 (0

4/
02

)
19

0,
86

7
29

.5
1

0.
92

-1
.1

6
5.

11
-1

.8
8

11
.8

3
11

.0
4

7.
11

7.
38

S&
P 

50
0

0.
39

1.
74

8.
91

1.
21

11
.2

6
11

.0
2

6.
91

6.
40

   
W

ad
de

ll 
& 

Re
ed

 In
ve

st
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t (
12

/0
4)

96
,2

50
14

.8
8

-0
.2

8
-3

.5
6

3.
98

0.
07

13
.3

8
11

.6
4

8.
60

9.
20

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

G
ro

w
th

-0
.9

1
-0

.1
8

7.
13

1.
07

12
.4

7
11

.4
4

8.
20

8.
27

   
Do

dg
e 

& 
C

ox
 In

co
rp

or
at

ed
  (

04
/0

2 )
94

,6
17

14
.6

3
2.

18
1.

40
6.

29
-3

.8
8

10
.0

2
10

.1
9

5.
43

7.
59

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

V
al

ue
2.

10
3.

77
9.

62
-0

.4
0

9.
59

10
.1

3
5.

67
6.

67

US
 S

m
al

l C
ap

 E
qu

ity
 (0

1/
99

)
48

,1
87

7.
45

1.
93

-1
.2

4
2.

70
-6

.2
1

7.
05

7.
83

6.
05

10
.4

9
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0
1.

57
0.

03
3.

62
-5

.9
4

7.
53

6.
98

5.
42

7.
27

   
W

TC
 S

C
 2

00
0 

(0
1/

99
)

33
,7

31
5.

22
2.

34
-0

.2
3

4.
41

-4
.2

0
10

.9
5

10
.3

8
8.

60
10

.9
0

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0

1.
57

0.
03

3.
62

-5
.9

4
7.

53
6.

98
5.

42
7.

27
   

C
la

riV
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t (
07

/0
7)

14
,4

55
2.

24
1.

00
-2

.7
3

1.
72

-4
.7

4
10

.7
4

9.
34

--
4.

92
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0 
G

ro
w

th
1.

00
-3

.7
3

0.
43

-8
.2

7
8.

50
7.

15
6.

14
5.

97

N
on

 U
S 

Eq
ui

ty
 (0

3/
03

)
14

6,
84

0
22

.7
1

1.
60

0.
17

4.
83

-1
0.

19
0.

45
0.

71
2.

32
8.

44
N

on
 U

S 
Eq

ui
ty

 In
d

ex
 2

2.
52

1.
31

5.
29

-1
0.

58
1.

14
1.

33
2.

21
9.

04

In
t'l

 D
ev

el
op

ed
 M

ar
ke

ts
 E

qu
it y

   
M

ar
at

ho
n-

Lo
nd

on
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l F

un
d 

(0
8/

15
)

60
,2

76
9.

32
2.

38
-1

.0
1

4.
80

--
--

--
--

-5
.1

2
M

SC
I E

A
FE

3.
00

0.
04

4.
79

-8
.8

9
1.

92
2.

16
2.

09
-7

.8
1

   
Fi

sh
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (0
7/

03
)

60
,2

54
9.

32
0.

64
-2

.6
5

2.
21

-1
2.

28
1.

22
1.

45
2.

52
7.

74
M

SC
I E

A
FE

3.
00

0.
04

4.
79

-8
.8

9
1.

92
2.

16
2.

09
7.

27
M

SC
I E

A
FE

 V
al

ue
4.

08
0.

08
2.

80
-1

2.
73

0.
37

1.
02

1.
08

-1
0.

79
M

SC
I E

A
FE

 G
ro

w
th

2.
00

-0
.0

0
6.

70
-5

.0
6

3.
40

3.
24

3.
03

7.
44

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 E
qu

ity
   

A
be

rd
ee

n 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (

06
/0

8)
26

,3
10

4.
07

2.
05

10
.5

3
11

.4
6

-9
.6

2
-4

.2
9

-0
.4

0
--

3.
76

M
SC

I E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
0.

56
6.

35
7.

13
-1

7.
56

-4
.2

3
-4

.2
8

2.
69

-1
.8

7

C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s' 

Re
tir

em
en

t F
un

d
Fo

r t
he

 P
er

io
d

s E
nd

in
g 

A
pr

il 3
0,

 2
01

6

 ©
 2

01
6 

A
ss

et
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
 A

ll R
ig

ht
s R

es
er

ve
d

 3

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 15 of 56



 P
re

lim
in

ar
y

M
ar

ke
t

Va
lu

e
($

00
0s

)

A
ct

ua
l

A
llo

ca
tio

n
(%

)

1
M

on
th

(%
)

YT
D

(%
)

FY
TD

(%
)

1
Ye

ar
(%

)

3
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

5
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

10
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

Si
nc

e
In

ce
pt

io
n

(%
)

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
(1

0/
84

)
18

8,
98

4
29

.2
2

0.
95

5.
43

4.
67

1.
88

1.
50

3.
83

5.
21

6.
90

Ba
rc

la
ys

 U
S 

A
gg

re
ga

te
0.

38
3.

43
2.

84
2.

72
2.

29
3.

60
4.

95
7.

44

   
Ta

pl
in

, C
an

id
a 

& 
Ha

ba
ch

t (
03

/9
7)

67
,8

00
10

.4
8

0.
96

3.
72

3.
11

1.
64

2.
04

4.
02

5.
32

5.
89

Ba
rc

la
ys

 U
S 

A
gg

re
ga

te
0.

38
3.

43
2.

84
2.

72
2.

29
3.

60
4.

95
5.

53
   

St
at

e 
St

re
et

 G
lo

ba
l A

dv
iso

rs
 (0

6/
03

)
59

,4
06

9.
19

0.
38

3.
43

2.
85

2.
74

2.
31

3.
62

5.
07

4.
36

Ba
rc

la
ys

 U
S 

A
gg

re
ga

te
0.

38
3.

43
2.

84
2.

72
2.

29
3.

60
4.

95
4.

28
   

Br
an

dy
w

in
e 

(0
2/

12
)

61
,7

78
9.

55
1.

50
9.

46
8.

32
1.

33
0.

09
--

--
2.

85
C

iti
gr

ou
p 

W
or

ld
 G

ov
t B

on
d

1.
26

8.
44

7.
11

6.
09

0.
55

0.
77

4.
08

0.
02

Re
al

 A
ss

et
s 

(0
7/

02
)

71
,1

22
11

.0
0

-0
.2

5
2.

92
6.

55
6.

97
8.

20
9.

47
6.

46
8.

40
Re

al
 A

ss
et

s C
om

po
sit

e 
In

d
ex

 3
-0

.0
2

3.
76

7.
71

7.
90

8.
38

10
.1

4
5.

81
--

C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
   

UB
S 

G
lo

ba
l A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (

09
/0

0)
39

,1
99

6.
06

0.
00

2.
07

5.
15

11
.9

4
11

.8
3

11
.3

8
6.

74
8.

59
N

FI
 O

D
C

E 
N

et
0.

00
1.

97
5.

14
12

.6
4

12
.5

9
12

.2
0

5.
38

7.
22

O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
   

Pr
iv

at
e 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

(0
6/

04
)

83
7

0.
13

0.
01

2.
93

4.
53

21
.5

2
26

.4
5

20
.2

4
0.

42
2.

52

G
lo

ba
l R

EI
Ts

   
C

BR
E 

C
la

rio
n 

(0
7/

09
)

31
,0

86
4.

81
-0

.5
4

3.
91

8.
24

1.
11

3.
30

6.
72

--
13

.0
7

FT
SE

 E
PR

A
/N

A
RE

IT 
D

ev
 R

E
-0

.0
4

5.
40

10
.0

3
2.

79
3.

82
7.

39
4.

62
13

.8
8

C
as

h 
an

d 
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

s 
(0

6/
93

)
71

5
0.

11
0.

00
0.

11
0.

16
0.

40
0.

25
0.

26
1.

32
3.

03
Pr

iv
at

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Re

sid
ua

l C
as

h
0

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

D
a

te
s 

re
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 f
ir
st

 f
u

ll 
m

o
n

th
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

.

FY
TD

: 
Fi

sc
a

l y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
in

g
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r.

C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s' 

Re
tir

em
en

t F
un

d
Fo

r t
he

 P
er

io
d

s E
nd

in
g 

A
pr

il 3
0,

 2
01

6

 ©
 2

01
6 

A
ss

et
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
 A

ll R
ig

ht
s R

es
er

ve
d

 4

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 16 of 56



1
M

on
th

(%
)

YT
D

(%
)

FY
TD

(%
)

1
Ye

ar
(%

)

3
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

5
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

10
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

Eq
ui

ty
 M

ar
ke

ts
 - 

C
or

e
S&

P 
50

0
0.

39
1.

74
8.

91
1.

21
11

.2
6

11
.0

2
6.

91
Ru

ss
el

l 1
00

0
0.

54
1.

72
8.

33
0.

34
11

.0
6

10
.8

1
6.

99
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0
1.

57
0.

03
3.

62
-5

.9
4

7.
53

6.
98

5.
42

Ru
ss

el
l 2

50
0

1.
47

1.
87

5.
21

-4
.2

7
8.

57
8.

28
6.

59
Ru

ss
el

l M
id

 C
ap

1.
06

3.
33

7.
06

-2
.1

4
10

.3
7

9.
88

7.
49

Eq
ui

ty
 M

ar
ke

ts
 - 

G
ro

w
th

S&
P 

50
0 

G
ro

w
th

-1
.2

7
-0

.7
4

7.
07

1.
73

12
.7

1
12

.0
2

8.
35

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

G
ro

w
th

-0
.9

1
-0

.1
8

7.
13

1.
07

12
.4

7
11

.4
4

8.
20

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

G
ro

w
th

1.
00

-3
.7

3
0.

43
-8

.2
7

8.
50

7.
15

6.
14

Ru
ss

el
l 2

50
0 

G
ro

w
th

0.
96

-1
.7

3
2.

01
-6

.7
6

9.
47

8.
23

7.
07

Ru
ss

el
l M

id
 C

ap
 G

ro
w

th
-0

.0
6

0.
52

4.
66

-4
.1

3
10

.4
3

9.
20

7.
38

N
A

SD
A

Q
 C

om
p

-1
.9

4
-4

.6
3

3.
36

-3
.3

6
12

.7
8

10
.6

9
7.

47
Eq

ui
ty

 M
ar

ke
ts

 - 
Va

lu
e

S&
P 

50
0 

V
al

ue
2.

11
4.

35
10

.6
7

0.
28

9.
56

9.
90

5.
36

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

V
al

ue
2.

10
3.

77
9.

62
-0

.4
0

9.
59

10
.1

3
5.

67
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0 
V

al
ue

2.
12

3.
86

6.
84

-3
.7

1
6.

50
6.

77
4.

61
Ru

ss
el

l 2
50

0 
V

al
ue

1.
94

5.
34

8.
26

-1
.9

5
7.

75
8.

25
5.

96
Ru

ss
el

l M
id

 C
ap

 V
al

ue
2.

15
6.

15
9.

46
-0

.1
8

10
.2

6
10

.4
5

7.
35

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l M
ar

ke
ts

M
SC

I E
A

FE
3.

00
0.

04
4.

79
-8

.8
9

1.
92

2.
16

2.
09

M
SC

I W
or

ld
 e

x 
US

3.
32

1.
44

5.
46

-8
.9

7
1.

72
1.

68
2.

14
M

SC
I W

or
ld

1.
65

1.
45

7.
15

-3
.6

1
6.

86
6.

57
4.

71
Fi

xe
d 

In
co

m
e Bo

fA
 M

L 
1 

Yr
 T

re
as

ur
y 

N
ot

e
0.

10
0.

46
0.

29
0.

44
0.

31
0.

32
1.

72
Bo

fA
 M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

ie
ld

 M
as

te
r I

I
3.

97
7.

35
5.

02
-1

.3
6

2.
45

5.
21

7.
20

Ba
rc

la
ys

 In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 A
gg

0.
23

2.
54

2.
03

2.
45

2.
01

2.
92

4.
55

Ba
rc

la
ys

 U
S 

A
gg

re
ga

te
0.

38
3.

43
2.

84
2.

72
2.

29
3.

60
4.

95
Ba

rc
la

ys
 In

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 G

/C
0.

27
2.

72
2.

01
2.

37
1.

71
2.

83
4.

36
Ba

rc
la

ys
 U

S 
C

re
d

it
1.

22
5.

19
4.

64
2.

77
2.

67
4.

90
5.

87

M
ar

ke
t O

ve
rv

ie
w

Fo
r t

he
 P

er
io

d
s E

nd
in

g 
A

pr
il 3

0,
 2

01
6

 ©
 2

01
6 

A
ss

et
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
 A

ll R
ig

ht
s R

es
er

ve
d

 5

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 17 of 56



C
it

y 
o

f 
T

am
p

a

G
en

er
al

 E
m

p
lo

ye
es

 R
et

ir
em

en
t 

F
u

n
d

C
as

h
 F

lo
w

 P
ro

je
ct

io
n

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
O

ct
-1

5
N

o
v-

15
D

ec
-1

5
Ja

n
-1

6
F

eb
-1

6
M

ar
-1

6
A

p
r-

16
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

n
-1

6

B
eg

in
n

in
g

 B
al

an
ce

: 
59

1,
82

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

10
,3

51
,2

88
$ 

   
  

6,
45

2,
95

2
$ 

   
  

6,
31

9,
10

0
$ 

   
 

42
8,

18
1

$ 
   

   
  

 
5,

28
8,

46
3

$ 
  

72
4,

86
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
49

6,
99

1
$ 

   
   

55
3,

44
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

R
E

C
E

IP
T

S

E
E

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 C
ity

6,
02

3
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

3,
44

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

08
8

   
   

   
   

   
3,

06
5

   
   

   
   

  
3,

28
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
85

3
   

   
   

   
4,

05
9

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
85

3
   

   
   

   
2,

85
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

E
E

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 C
ou

nt
y 

36
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

36
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
36

8
   

   
   

   
   

  
64

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

81
9

   
   

   
   

  
 

40
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
64

7
   

   
   

   
   

64
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

E
R

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 C
ity

 
13

,2
54

,9
83

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

E
R

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 C
ou

nt
y 

63
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

54
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
54

2
   

   
   

   
   

  
95

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
20

5
   

   
   

   
60

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

95
2

   
   

   
   

   
95

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

G
W

 C
ap

ita
l L

iq
ui

da
tio

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
 

16
,9

07
,2

50
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

In
ve

st
m

en
t L

iq
ui

da
tio

n 
- 

C
B

R
E

 C
la

rio
n 

3,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 

Li
qu

id
ity

 N
ee

ds
4,

30
0,

00
0

   
   

6,
60

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 F

id
el

ity
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
G

ro
w

th
 F

un
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,4
13

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

 
57

,0
97

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

C
he

ck
 D

ep
os

ite
d

39
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

72
8

   
   

   
   

  
 

R
eb

at
es

, S
et

tle
m

en
ts

, M
is

c.
6,

20
7

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
4,

85
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
35

7
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

0
   

   
   

   
  

38
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

18
7

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

In
te

re
st

 R
ec

ei
ve

d
35

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

52
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

92
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
o

ta
l R

ec
ei

p
ts

13
,2

68
,2

50
   

   
   

9,
25

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

44
8

   
   

   
   

   
1,

02
1,

05
7

   
   

 
16

,9
12

,7
00

   
   

 
9,

79
2

   
   

   
   

3,
56

4,
16

8
   

   
   

 
4,

30
6,

45
2

   
   

6,
60

6,
45

2
   

   
   

   
 

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

P
en

si
on

 B
en

ef
its

(2
,9

51
,3

31
)

   
   

   
 

(2
,9

39
,2

73
)

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

,9
35

,0
99

)
   

   
(3

,0
02

,7
31

)
   

   
  

(3
,0

42
,9

32
)

   
 

(3
,2

67
,8

71
)

   
   

   
(3

,3
00

,0
00

)
   

 
(3

,3
00

,0
00

)
   

   
   

  

T
ax

es
 

(2
90

,6
61

)
   

   
   

   
 

(2
88

,1
86

)
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

89
,0

11
)

   
   

   
(2

97
,0

85
)

   
   

   
  

(3
13

,6
37

)
   

   
 

(3
02

,2
20

)
   

   
   

  
(3

50
,0

00
)

   
   

 
(3

50
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

  

V
en

do
rs

(2
06

,4
60

)
   

   
   

   
 

(6
80

,1
34

)
   

   
   

  
(3

87
,8

66
)

   
   

   
(7

52
,6

02
)

   
   

   
  

(2
68

,5
08

)
   

   
 

(2
21

,9
55

)
   

   
   

  
(6

00
,0

00
)

   
   

 
(2

50
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

  

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

R
O

P
 P

ay
ou

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

41
,3

00
)

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(9

48
,3

09
)

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,7

00
,0

00
)

   
   

   
  

R
ef

un
d 

of
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 (
F

or
fe

itu
re

s)
(6

0,
33

9)
   

   
   

   
   

In
ve

st
m

en
t M

gr
 F

un
di

ng
 -

 W
el

lin
gt

on
(8

,0
00

,0
00

)
   

   
  

T
o

ta
l D

is
b

u
rs

em
en

ts
(3

,4
48

,4
52

)
   

   
   

 
(3

,9
07

,5
93

)
   

   
  

(1
41

,3
00

)
   

   
   

 
(6

,9
11

,9
76

)
   

   
(1

2,
05

2,
41

8)
   

   
(4

,5
73

,3
86

)
   

 
(3

,7
92

,0
46

)
   

   
   

(4
,2

50
,0

00
)

   
 

(6
,6

00
,0

00
)

   
   

   
  

E
n

d
in

g
 B

al
an

ce
10

,4
11

,6
27

$ 
   

   
6,

45
2,

95
2

$ 
   

   
 

6,
31

9,
10

0
$ 

   
  

42
8,

18
1

$ 
   

   
 

5,
28

8,
46

3
$ 

   
   

72
4,

86
9

$ 
   

  
49

6,
99

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

55
3,

44
3

$ 
   

   
55

9,
89

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

N
o

te
s:

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
di

d 
no

t s
en

d 
th

e 
D

ec
. 3

1,
 2

01
5 

w
ire

 tr
an

sf
er

s 
of

 $
3,

12
8,

47
2 

an
d 

$2
89

,2
09

 a
s 

in
st

ru
ct

ed
.  

T
he

 w
ire

s 
w

er
e 

he
ld

 u
p 

by
 th

e 
JP

 M
or

ga
n 

C
as

h 
P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
T

ea
m

 a
nd

 s
en

t o
ut

 o
n 

Ja
n.

 4
, 2

01
6.

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 18 of 56



C
it
y

o
f

Ta
m

p
a

G
e

n
e

ra
l
E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s'

R
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t

Fu
n

d

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

a
s

o
f
M

a
y

3
,
2

0
1

6
M

a
rk

e
t

V
a

lu
e

%
o

f
To

ta
l

Fu
n

d
Ta

rg
e

t
V

a
lu

e
Ta

rg
e

t
%

$
V

a
lu

e

O
v

e
r/

U
n

d
e

r

Ta
rg

e
t

P
ro

p
o

se
d

R
e

b
a

la
n

c
e

(C
a

sh
In

c
re

a
se

)

R
e

b
a

la
n

c
e

d

V
a

lu
e

R
e

b
a

la
n

c
e

d

M
ix

To
ta

l
E
q

u
it
y

$
3

8
2

,9
9

6
,9

5
7

5
9

.5
7

%
$

3
8

5
,7

8
6

,6
7

9
6

0
.0

0
%

($
2

,7
8

9
,7

2
2

)
$

0
$

3
8

2
,9

9
6

,9
5

7
5

9
.5

7
%

W
a

d
d

e
ll

&
R

e
e

d
$
9

6
,2

0
4
,2

0
4

1
4
.9

6
%

$
8
0

,3
7
2

,2
2

5
1

2
.5

0
%

$
1
5

,8
3

1
,9

7
9

$
9
6

,2
0

4
,2

0
4

1
4

.9
6

%

D
o

d
g

e
&

C
o

x
$
9

3
,7

9
3
,1

9
4

1
4
.5

9
%

$
8
0

,3
7
2

,2
2

5
1

2
.5

0
%

$
1
3

,4
2

0
,9

6
9

$
9
3

,7
9

3
,1

9
4

1
4

.5
9

%

U
.S

.
La

rg
e

C
a

p
E
q

u
it
y

To
ta

l
$

1
8

9
,9

9
7

,3
9

8
2

9
.5

5
%

$
1

6
0

,7
4

4
,4

5
0

2
5

.0
0

%
$

2
9

,2
5

2
,9

4
8

$
0

$
1

8
9

,9
9

7
,3

9
8

2
9

.5
5

%

C
la

ri
V

e
st

$
1

4
,3

0
7
,6

0
3

2
.2

3
%

$
1
6

,0
7
4

,4
4

5
2
.5

0
%

($
1
,7

6
6
,8

4
2
)

$
1
4

,3
0

7
,6

0
3

2
.2

3
%

N
e

w
S
m

a
ll

C
a

p
V

a
lu

e
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

$
3

0
3

0
.0

0
%

$
1
6

,0
7
4

,4
4

5
2
.5

0
%

($
1
6
,0

7
4
,1

4
2
)

$
3
0

3
0

.0
0

%

W
e

lli
n

g
to

n
(c

lo
se

d
)*

*
$
3

2
,9

6
0
,7

3
1

5
.1

3
%

$
3
2

,1
4
8

,8
9

0
5
.0

0
%

$
8
1

1
,8

4
1

$
0

$
3
2

,9
6

0
,7

3
1

5
.1

3
%

U
.S

.
S
m

a
ll

C
a

p
E
q

u
it
y

To
ta

l
$

4
7

,2
6

8
,6

3
8

7
.3

5
%

$
6

4
,2

9
7

,7
8

0
1

0
.0

0
%

($
1

7
,0

2
9

,1
4

2
)

$
0

$
4

7
,2

6
8

,6
3

8
7

.3
5

%

M
a

ra
th

o
n

-L
o

n
d

o
n

In
tl

Fu
n

d
*

$
6

0
,2

7
6
,0

1
9

9
.3

7
%

$
6
4

,2
9
7

,7
8

0
1

0
.0

0
%

($
4
,0

2
1
,7

6
1
)

$
6
0

,2
7

6
,0

1
9

9
.3

7
%

Fi
sh

e
r

$
5

9
,6

7
3
,1

0
6

9
.2

8
%

$
6
4

,2
9
7

,7
8

0
1

0
.0

0
%

($
4
,6

2
4
,6

7
3
)

$
5
9

,6
7

3
,1

0
6

9
.2

8
%

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
**

$
2

5
,7

8
1
,7

9
6

4
.0

1
%

$
3
2

,1
4
8

,8
9

0
5
.0

0
%

($
6
,3

6
7
,0

9
4
)

$
2
5

,7
8

1
,7

9
6

4
.0

1
%

N
o

n
-U

.S
.
E
q

u
it
y

To
ta

l
$

1
4

5
,7

3
0

,9
2

2
2

2
.6

7
%

$
1

6
0

,7
4

4
,4

5
0

2
5

.0
0

%
($

1
5

,0
1

3
,5

2
8

)
$

0
$

1
4

5
,7

3
0

,9
2

2
2

2
.6

7
%

To
ta

l
R

e
a

l
A

ss
e

ts
$

7
1

,3
2

7
,4

2
9

1
1

.0
9

%
$

6
4

,2
9

7
,7

8
0

1
0

.0
0

%
$

7
,0

2
9

,6
4

9
($

4
,3

0
0

,0
0

0
)

$
6

7
,0

2
7

,4
2

9
1

0
.4

2
%

V
a

lu
e

/O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
is

ti
c

R
e

a
lE

st
a

te
**

$
8

3
7
,2

2
5

0
.1

3
%

$
1
9

,2
8
9

,3
3

4
3
.0

0
%

($
1
8
,4

5
2
,1

0
9
)

$
8
3

7
,2

2
5

0
.1

3
%

C
B

R
E

C
la

ri
o

n
$
3

1
,2

9
1
,0

7
7

4
.8

7
%

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
3
1

,2
9

1
,0

7
7

($
4

,3
0

0
,0

0
0
)

$
2
6

,9
9

1
,0

7
7

4
.2

0
%

U
B

S
Tr

u
m

b
u

ll*
*

$
3

9
,1

9
9
,1

2
7

6
.1

0
%

$
4
5

,0
0
8

,4
4

6
7
.0

0
%

($
5
,8

0
9
,3

1
9
)

$
3
9

,1
9

9
,1

2
7

6
.1

0
%

To
ta

l
Fi

x
e

d
In

c
o

m
e

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
c

a
sh

)
$

1
8

8
,6

5
3

,4
1

3
2

9
.3

4
%

$
1

9
2

,8
9

3
,3

4
0

3
0

.0
0

%
($

4
,2

3
9

,9
2

7
)

$
4

,3
0

0
,0

0
0

$
1

9
2

,9
5

3
,4

1
3

3
0

.0
1

%

Ta
p

lin
,
C

a
n

id
a

&
H

a
b

a
c

h
t

$
6

7
,6

6
8
,0

2
7

1
0
.5

2
%

$
6
4

,2
9
7

,7
8

0
1

0
.0

0
%

$
3

,3
7

0
,2

4
7

$
6
7

,6
6

8
,0

2
7

1
0

.5
2

%

B
ra

n
d

y
w

in
e

**
$
6

0
,8

6
4
,4

5
0

9
.4

7
%

$
6
4

,2
9
7

,7
8

0
1

0
.0

0
%

($
3
,4

3
3
,3

3
0
)

$
6
0

,8
6

4
,4

5
0

9
.4

7
%

SS
g

A
*

$
5

9
,4

0
5
,5

1
4

9
.2

4
%

$
6
4

,2
9
7

,7
8

0
1

0
.0

0
%

($
4
,8

9
2
,2

6
6
)

$
5
9

,4
0

5
,5

1
4

9
.2

4
%

Fi
x

e
d

In
c

o
m

e
To

ta
l

$
1

8
7

,9
3

7
,9

9
0

2
9

.2
3

%
$

1
9

2
,8

9
3

,3
4

0
3

0
.0

0
%

($
4

,9
5

5
,3

5
0

)
$

0
$

1
8

7
,9

3
7

,9
9

0
2

9
.2

3
%

C
a

sh
a

n
d

E
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

$
7

1
5
,4

2
3

0
.1

1
%

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
7
1

5
,4

2
3

$
4
,3

0
0

,0
0
0

$
5
,0

1
5
,4

2
3

0
.7

8
%

P
ri
v

a
te

R
e

a
lE

st
a

te
R

e
si

d
u

a
lC

a
sh

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0

$
0

0
.0

0
%

C
it
y

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
$

0
0
.0

0
%

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0

$
0

0
.0

0
%

C
a

sh
a

n
d

E
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

To
ta

l
$

7
1

5
,4

2
3

0
.1

1
%

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
7

1
5

,4
2

3
$

4
,3

0
0

,0
0

0
$

5
,0

1
5

,4
2

3
0

.7
8

%

To
ta

l
P

o
rt

fo
lio

$
6

4
2

,9
7

7
,7

9
9

1
0

0
.0

0
%

$
6

4
2

,9
7

7
,7

9
9

1
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0

$
0

$
6

4
2

,9
7

7
,7

9
9

1
0

0
.0

0
%

*M
a

rk
e

t
V

a
lu

e
a

s
o

f
4
/3

0
/1

6

**
M

a
rk

e
t

V
a

lu
e

a
s

o
f
3
/3

1
/1

6

©
2
0
1
5

A
ss

e
t

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
G

ro
u

p
A

ll
R

ig
h

ts
R

e
se

rv
e

d

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 19 of 56



CITY OF TAMPA GENERAL EMPLOYEES 

RETIREMENT FUND  

RESOLUTION NO: 2016-03 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ACTUARIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

AND ADDENDUM BETWEEN THE CITY OF TAMPA GENERAL 

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND AND AON HEWITT; AUTHORIZING 

EXECUTION THEREOF BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES FOR THE CITY OF TAMPA RETIREMENT FUND, PROVIDING 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees for City of Tampa General Employees’ Retirement 

Fund (“Board”), desires to approve this Actuarial Services Agreement and Addendum between 

the City of Tampa General Employees Retirement Fund and Aon Hewitt; and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Board to approve the Actuarial Services Agreement 

and Addendum with Aon Hewitt; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize and allow Aon Hewitt to provide actuarial 

services; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the members of the City of Tampa General 

Employees Retirement Fund to have the Board approve the Actuarial Services Agreement and 

Addendum with Aon Hewitt. 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GENERAL 

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND  

OF THE CITY OF TAMPA, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The Actuarial Services Agreement and Addendum between the City of 

Tampa Retirement Fund and Aon Hewitt, a copy of which is attached hereto and by reference 

made part hereof, is hereby approved in its entirety. 

 

 Section 2. The Board authorizes and approves execution of the Actuarial Services 

Agreement and Addendum. 

 

 Section 3. The Chairman of the Board is authorized and empowered to execute, as 

attested by its Recording Secretary, on behalf of the City of Tampa General Employees’ 

Retirement Fund.  

 

 Section 4. Other proper officers of the City of Tampa General Employees Retirement 

Fund are authorized to do all things necessary and proper to carry out and make effective the 

provisions of this Resolution. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 20 of 56



 

 Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY MAJORITY VOTE OF THE CITY OF TAMPA 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND BOARD ON ______________________. 

 

 

 

CITY OF TAMPA GENERAL EMPLOYEES 

RETIREMENT FUND  

 

                          

                                                                        By:_________________________________ 

                                   ERNEST CARRERA, CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST TO: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

NATASHA NEAGU, RECORDING 

SECRETARY AND GE PENSION 

PLAN SUPERVISOR 

 

 

 
I:\Pension Board\Aon\Reso_Addendum_05102016 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 21 of 56



Aon Hewitt 1  

  
 
 
 
April 11, 2016 
 
Ms. Natasha Neagu 
General Employees’ Pension Supervisor  
City of Tampa, Florida 
306 E. Jackson St. 7th Floor 
Tampa, FL 33602 
 
Dear Natasha: 
 
Subject: Benefit Statement Consulting Agreement 

Thank you for the opportunity to continue our long-term relationship, we look forward to working with 
you. This letter documents our additional charges for actuarial services during the 2016 calendar year 
and beyond.  This agreement will serve as an addendum to our current actuarial services contract.  
All fees outlined in this agreement are in addition to the currently agreed upon fees.  All terms and 
conditions of the original contract apply to this agreement as well. 

Hence, based on mutual objectives and clearly defined responsibilities, we would like to confirm our 
understanding and agreement with you about the specifics of our indicated assignments 

Specific Services 
 
Annual Accrued benefits will be calculated for all active employees as of January 1.  This information 
will be delivered in an agreed upon format that will enable printing annual benefit statements.  
 
Data and Required Information 

To a large degree, the accuracy, timeliness and cost of our services depends upon the accuracy, 
timeliness and completeness of the data, documents and information you provide about the structure 
of your organization and about your plan.  The data used for this assignment is the data provided by 
the City. 

We maintain records in accordance with Aon Hewitt’s document retention policy.  The following table 
summarizes retention periods for common documents: 

Document Type Retention Period 

 Final reports (deliverables), disclosure information 
valuation work papers and data, consulting 
correspondence 

10 years 

 Communication with clients, internal, or third party 
such as E-mails, phone notes, letters, faxes 

Consistent with 
ultimate use 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 22 of 56



        April 11, 2016 
Ms. Natasha Neagu 

Page 2 
If you would like documents to be held for a period different than indicated, please let us know.   
 
Fees for Services 
 
Year 1:  
Fees for the Annual Benefit Statement calculations will be $12,500 with no additional fees for out of 
pocket expense.  This fee includes a $2,500 one-time set up fee. 

Subsequent years 
Fees for the Annual Benefit Statement Calculations in subsequent years will be $10,000.  Similar to 
the annual valuation fees, this fee will be adjusted annually based on the annual increase in the 
Consumer Price Index. 
 
The initial term of our agreement will begin on January 1, 2016 and end on December 31, 2016. This 
agreement will automatically renew for successive one-year terms unless the City of Tampa General 
Employees’ Retirement Fund or Aon Hewitt provides a written termination notice. If this agreement is 
terminated, the City of Tampa General Employees’ Retirement Fund will be responsible for any 
unpaid work performed up to the date of termination. For Services performed before or after the 
effective dates of this letter, Aon Hewitt will be entitled to receive compensation for services actually 
performed and related out-of-pocket expenses at Aon Hewitt’s standard billing rates or as otherwise 
agreed in writing between the parties.   
 

We will invoice you based on the progress of the work and the fees for other projects. Fees are due 
within 45 days of the invoice date. You will promptly notify Aon Hewitt of any questions regarding 
invoices so that we can expect timely payments. Interest on late payments will be assessed at (i) one 
half  % per Florida Statute #55.03 or (ii) the highest rate allowable by law, in each case compounded 
monthly to the extent allowable by law. 

Other consulting projects may also be included as part of this engagement, as agreed to in writing or 
email by the parties.  With respect to any project, we retain all ownership rights to our existing and 
developed intellectual property.  Each party agrees to treat the other’s proprietary information as 
confidential.  Our professional services do not in any case include legal, investment or accounting 
services.  We are not a fiduciary to your plan. 

We pride ourselves on the quality and accuracy of our work and do not anticipate any errors.  
However, should any occur, we will correct our work product without any additional charge.  In 
addition, to the extent an error occurs in our work or we have otherwise failed to satisfy our 
obligations under this Agreement, we will be liable to you for up to one times the amount of fees you 
paid for the work.  As our sole responsibility under this Agreement is to you, you will defend any third 
party claims against you or us arising out of our work.  Third parties include the plans, any trustees 
and participants.  If it is determined that any damages resulted from our error, we will reimburse you 
for up to the amount set forth in this Agreement.  Any disputes under this Agreement will be governed 
by Florida law. 

 
  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 23 of 56



        April 11, 2016 
Ms. Natasha Neagu 

Page 3 
 
Please acknowledge by return email or written communication your consent to these arrangements 
for this engagement. 
Feel free to contact me with any questions or comments. We look forward to working with you and 
your team. 

Sincerely, 

 
Stephen Lambert-Oswald, F.S.A., E.A., M.A.A.A. 
Senior Consultant 
 
 

Accepted this __ day of ________________, 20___ 

City of Tampa General Employees’ Retirement Fund 

By: __________________________ 

Name: ________________________ 

Title: _________________________ 

 

By: __________________________ 

Name: ________________________ 

Title: _________________________ 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 24 of 56



CITY OF TAMPA 

General Employees 

Retirement Fund 
 

 

 

 

Policies and Procedures 
 

Division A Survivor 

Remarriage Audit 

 
PROCEDURE FOR DIVISION A SURVIVOR REMARRIAGE AUDITS 

 
This procedure is the mechanism that ensures Division A survivor benefits are paid in 
accordance with Section 12(A)(1) of Chapter 23559 of the Special Act of 1945. 
 
Background 
 
The Retirement Plan for City of Tampa General Employees Retirement Fund provides 
the following pension benefits to surviving spouses of deceased employees or retirees 
in the Division A plan.   
 
“To the widow/widower until he dies or remarries, a monthly pension equal to 75% of 
the Employee’s Accrued Pension; however, such monthly pension shall be reduced to 
50% of the Employee’s Accrued Pension if such widow/widower remarries.” 
 
The General Employees Retirement Fund will conduct an annual audit of all surviving 
spouses of former Division A members by requiring them to complete a marital status 
affidavit. 
 
Procedure 
 
1) On an annual basis, 100% of Division A surviving spouses will be required to 

complete and return the following within 30 days: 
a. Marital Status Affidavit (Attachment A) 

 
2) Those surviving spouses that have previously notified the General Employees 

Retirement Fund of a remarriage and subsequently had their pension benefits 
reduced will not be subject to the annual remarriage audit.  
 

3) The General Employees Retirement Fund staff will review available records of all 
surviving spouses on the Hillsborough County, Pasco County, Pinellas County and 
Polk County Clerks’ websites to determine if there are any marriage records. 

 
4) A follow up letter will be sent to all Division A survivors that fail to complete and 

return the marital status affidavit within 30 days.  The letter will state his or her 
mandatory participation in the audit.  Failure to comply with the audit will result in the 
suspension of pension benefits. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 25 of 56



 

 
5) Any Division A survivor who fails to complete and return the marital status affidavit 

within 30 days of the date of the second letter shall have his or her pension benefits 
withheld.  

 
6) Any reported remarriages or remarriages discovered as a result of the audit will 

result in a reduction in survivor benefits to 50% of the Employee’s accrued pension 
in accordance with Section 12(A)(1) of Chapter 23559 of the Special Act of 1945. 

 
7) Any overpayments discovered as a result of the audit will be collected in accordance 

with the Board’s overpayment policies and procedures.  
 

 
 

Approved by:      
 
 
 
 
 
Ernest P. Carrera, Board Chairman  Date 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 26 of 56



CITY OF TAMPA 

General Employees 

Retirement Fund 
 

 

 

 

 

Policies and Procedures 
 

Overpayments 

 
PROCEDURE FOR OVERPAYMENTS 

 
This procedure is the mechanism that shall be followed upon the discovery of an 
overpayment of benefits by the General Employees Retirement Fund. 
 
Background 
 
Overpayments of pension benefits may occur for a variety of reasons such as:  
 

 Administrative errors made by the pension department staff in performing: 
o Pension benefit calculations 
o DROP payout calculations 
o Adjustments to pension benefits due to survivor remarriages (Division A) 
o Failure to suspend pension benefits for re-employed retired members 
o Refunds of contributions 
o Death benefit payments 

 
 Negligence on part of the retiree/survivor: 

o Failure to report a remarriage to the pension department (Division A) 
o Failure to notify the pension department of his/her re-employment with the 

City of Tampa in a full-time or part-time, regular position 
 

 Untimely notification of retiree/survivor deaths 
 

The failure to follow a provision of Chapter 23559, Special Act of 1945 of the Florida 
State Legislature must be immediately corrected and the member notified.  The General 
Employees Retirement Fund should make every attempt to collect overpayments to 
ensure the pension fund is made whole and benefits are paid in accordance with the 
Act. 
 
Procedure 
 
 
1) Overpayments that Result from Administrative Errors 

If the member has been overpaid through no fault of the member, and could not 
reasonably have detected the error, the Plan Administrator shall use the following 
procedures: 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 27 of 56



 
 
a) Administrative errors made in pension benefit calculations, DROP payout 

calculations or adjustments to pension benefits due to survivor remarriages 
(Division A): 
 
The pension will be adjusted to the correct amount in accordance with Chapter 
23559 of the Special Act of 1945.  The amount of the overpayment will be 
calculated.  The retiree will be notified in writing of the benefit adjustment and the 
amount of the overpayment. 
 
The retiree or survivor will be given 30 days to repay the pension fund for the 
overpayment.  Otherwise the amount will be collected over the same period of 
time that the overpayment occurred by reducing the retiree’s or survivor’s 
monthly pension benefit.  No interest will be charged. 
 

b) Administrative errors made in suspending pension benefits for re-employed 
retired employees: 
 
The re-employed retired employee’s pension will be suspended during the period 
of re-employment in accordance with Section 16 of Chapter 23559 of the Special 
Act of 1945.  The amount of the overpayment will be calculated.  The member 
will be notified in writing that his/her pension benefits have been suspended 
during the period of re-employment and informed that an overpayment has 
resulted.   
 
The member will be given 30 days to repay the pension fund for the 
overpayment.  Otherwise the amount will be collected over the same period of 
time that the overpayment occurred by reducing the retiree’s monthly pension 
benefit when they retire the second time.  No interest will be charged.   
 
When the member retires again the pension benefit for the additional service will 
be calculated in accordance with Section 16 of Chapter 23559 of the Special Act 
of 1945.  The original pension benefit plus the additional pension benefit earned 
during the additional service will be paid to the retiree, less the deduction for the 
overpayment.  
 

c) Administrative errors made in refunds of contributions: 
 
An attempt will be made to place a stop payment on the check or reverse the 
ACH.  A letter will be sent to the former member advising him/her of the amount 
of the overpayment.  If the attempt to stop the check or reverse the ACH is 
unsuccessful, the member will be given 30 days to repay the pension fund for the 
overpayment.   
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 28 of 56



If he or she fails to pay back such amount, the official or board responsible for 
paying benefits pursuant to the retirement system or pension plan may bring an 
action in circuit court to recover such amount, plus court costs.   
 

d) Administrative errors made in death benefit payments: 
 
Estate Payments:  An attempt will be made to place a stop payment on the check 
or reverse the ACH.  A letter will be sent to the beneficiary advising him/her of 
the amount of the overpayment.  If the attempt to stop the check or reverse the 
ACH is unsuccessful, the beneficiary will be given 30 days to repay the pension 
fund for the overpayment.    
 
If the beneficiary is a surviving spouse eligible for a survivor allowance, no 
benefits will be paid until the overpayment is repaid to the pension fund.  
 
If the beneficiary is not a surviving spouse and he or she fails to pay back such 
amount, the official or board responsible for paying benefits pursuant to the 
retirement system or pension plan may bring an action in circuit court to recover 
such amount, plus court costs. 
 
Lump Sum 1x Salary Death Benefit:  An attempt will be made to place the stop 
payment on the check or reverse the ACH.  A letter will be sent to the beneficiary 
advising him/her of the amount of the overpayment.  If the attempt to stop the 
check or reverse the ACH is unsuccessful, the beneficiary will be given 30 days 
to repay the pension fund for the overpayment.    
 
If the beneficiary is a surviving spouse eligible for a survivor allowance, no 
benefits will be paid until the overpayment is repaid to the pension fund.  
 
If the beneficiary is not a surviving spouse and he or she fails to pay back such 
amount, the official or board responsible for paying benefits pursuant to the 
retirement system or pension plan may bring an action in circuit court to recover 
such amount, plus court costs. 
 

2) Overpayments that Result from Retiree/Survivor Negligence: 
 
If the member has been knowingly overpaid or should have known of the error, the Plan 
Administrator shall use the recapture method for the overpayment by reducing the 
monthly benefit over the same period of time as the overpayment occurred, using the 
overpayment recapture factors established by the General Employees Retirement 
Fund’s Actuary. 
 
Examples:   
 Division A survivor who remarries and fails to notify the General Employees 

Retirement Fund of his/her remarriage or falsifies information on the marital status 
affidavit. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 29 of 56



 Retiree that fails to notify the General Employees Retirement Fund upon his/her re-
employment with the City of Tampa. 
 

The pension will be adjusted to the correct amount in accordance with Chapter 23559 of 
the Special Act of 1945.  The amount of the overpayment will be calculated.  The retiree 
will be notified in writing of the benefit adjustment and the amount of the overpayment. 
  
The retiree will be given 30 days to repay the overpayment.  Otherwise the amount will 
be collected over the same period of time that the overpayment occurred, inclusive of 
interest of 8% per annum (equal to the pension fund’s rate of return assumption).  The 
overpayment will be collected by reducing the retiree’s monthly pension benefit.  The 
reduced pension benefit will be calculated by using the recapture table in Attachment A. 
 

3) Overpayments that Result from the Untimely Notification of Retiree/Survivor 
Deaths 
 
An attempt is made to place a stop payment on the check(s) or to reverse the ACH 
payment(s).  If attempts are unsuccessful, the amount of the overpayment will be offset 
by the estate payment.  If any overpayment remains a letter will be sent to decedent’s 
estate notifying them of the overpayment and requesting that the amount be repaid 
within 30 days.  Interest will not be charged. 
 

4) Appeal Process 
 

Should the member wish to appeal the decision/action of the Plan Administrator, the 
member may request a review by the Board of Trustees. 
 
The Board of Trustees may: 
 

a) Rescind the action of the Plan Administrator and institute another recovery 
method recommended by the General Employee’s Retirement Fund’s Actuary, 
such as recapturing the overpayment over the member’s life expectancy. 
 

b) Waive any repayment which it believes would cause hardship. 
 

For a waiver to be on account of hardship it must be made as a result of an 
immediate and heavy financial need of the member and the amount must be 
necessary to satisfy the financial need.  The need of the member includes the 
need of the member’s spouse or dependent.  Whether a need is immediate and 
heavy depends on the facts and circumstances.  Certain expenses are deemed 
to be immediate and heavy, including: 

 
I. Certain medical expenses 
II. Prevention of eviction from, or foreclosure on, a principal residence 

III. Burial or funeral expenses 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 30 of 56



IV. Certain expenses for the repair of damage to the member’s principal 
residence 

 
c) Uphold the decision/action of the Plan Administrator. 

 
 

Approved by: 
 
 
 
 
Ernest P. Carrera, Board Chairman   Date 

 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 31 of 56



LONGEVITY RETIREMENTS

Date of Hire Separation

Employee ID Name Birth Date Date Yrs Mos Department
36058-00 David Holmes 4/7/1954 6/12/1989 4/7/2016 26 10 Solid Waste

DROP APPLICATIONS

Date of Hire Separation

Employee ID Name Birth Date Date Yrs Mos Department
31546-00 Millie Hall 3/21/1952 2/18/1985 4/9/2016 31 2 Public Works

31712-00 Richard Hoel 3/12/1953 4/11/1985 4/23/2016 31 0 Public Works

35672-00 MaryAnn Hunsberger 11/28/1988 4/9/2016 27 4 Police

37383-00 Carlos Martes 1/27/1954 11/5/1990 3/26/2016 25 5 Transportation

31537-00 Gloria Moreda 3/31/1954 12/3/1984 4/9/2016 31 4 Planning & Development

22974-00 Ronald Mitchell 10/13/1952 7/29/1985 4/23/2016 30 8 Parks & Recreation

DROP TO LONGEVITY

Date of Hire DROP Exit

Employee ID Name Birth Date Date Yrs Mos Department

33859-00 Jerline Burney  8/24/1986 4/30/2016 25 9 Police

28078-00 Christine Jackson 7/13/1955 4/20/1981 4/29/2016 30 0 Revenue & Finance

35553-00 Sandra Pitman 3/12/1952 8/24/1988 4/29/2016 25 8 Wastewater

35814-00 Maria Porter 1/25/1955 1/9/1989 4/12/2016 21 1 Human Resources

DEFERRED RETIREMENTS

Date of Hire Separation

Employee ID Name Birth Date Date Yrs Mos Department

29437-00 Diane Bigelow 2/11/1956 11/22/1982 2/11/2016 33 2 Technology & Innovation

34649-00 David Jankiewicz 8/29/1962 8/21/1989 2/5/2016 26 5 Parks & Recreation

45765-00 John Yonke 3/18/2002 3/19/2016 14 0 Police

DEFERRED TO LONGEVITY RETIREMENTS

Hire  Separation

Employee ID Name Date Date Yrs Mos Department

43898-00 Linda Fink  7/15/1996 2/3/2013 16 6 Police

SURVIVOR BENEFITS

Date of

Survivor ID Spouse Decedent Death Division

28556-01 Maria Rodriguez Felix Rodriguez 4/9/2016 A

ESTATE PAYMENTS

Date of

Beneficiary ID Beneficiary Decedent Death

43890-80 Marian Cook Orrin Cook 4/4/2016

02504-80 Julia Fernandez Joe Fernandez 3/6/2016

23618-80 Colleen Giesting Michael Johnson 4/4/2016

00657-80 Rosalie Gratz Domenick DiRosa 4/16/2016

28556-80 Maria Rodriguez Felix Rodriguez 4/9/2016

Continuous Service

Continuous Service

Continuous Service

City of Tampa 

General Employees Retirement Fund

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments

Consent Agenda

May 17, 2016

Continuous Service

Continuous Service

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 32 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 33 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 34 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 35 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 36 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 37 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 38 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 39 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 40 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 41 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 42 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 43 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 44 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 45 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 46 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 47 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 48 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 49 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 50 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 51 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 52 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 53 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 54 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 55 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - May 17, 2016 Page 56 of 56




